
The City of Tukwila strives to accommodate individuals with disabilities. 
Please contact the Public Works Department at 206-433-0179 for assistance. 

AGENDA 
MONDAY, APRIL 9, 2018 – 5:30 PM 
FOSTER CONFERENCE ROOM – 6300 BUILDING 

 

Next Scheduled Meeting: Monday, April 23, 2018 

 

City of Tukwila 
Transportation and 
Infrastructure Committee 
 Thomas McLeod, Chair 
 De’Sean Quinn 
 Zak Idan 

Distribution: 
T. McLeod 
D. Quinn 
Z. Idan 
V. Seal 
D. Robertson 
Mayor Ekberg 
D. Cline 
L. Humphrey 
H. Hash 
G. Labanara 
City Engineer 
P. Brodin 

 

R. Turpin 
A. Youn 
Clerk File Copy 
2 Extra 
 
Place pkt pdf on Z:\Trans & 
Infra Agendas 
e-mail cover  to: A. Le, 
C. O’Flaherty, A. Youn,  
D. Almberg, B. Saxton, 
S. Norris, & L. Humphrey 

Item Recommended Action Page 
 
1. 

 
PRESENTATION(S)    

2. BUSINESS AGENDA    

 a) Water Reservoir and Pump Station 
Consultant Agreement 

a) Forward to 4/16/18 Regular 
Consent Agenda 

Pg.  1 

 b) CBD Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation 
Design Consultant Selection and Agreement for 2018-A 

b) Forward to 4/16/18 Regular 
Consent Agenda 

Pg. 11 

 c) CBD Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation 
2018 Construction Management Contract with RH2 

c) Forward to 4/16/18 Regular 
Consent Agenda 

Pg. 25 

 d) 2018 Annual Small Drainage Program 
Consultant Selection and Agreement 

d) Forward to 4/16/18 Regular 
Consent Agenda 

Pg. 41 

 e) Strander Boulevard Extension Phase 3 
BP/Olympic Pipeline Reimbursement 

e) Forward to 4/16/18 Regular 
Consent Agenda 

Pg. 55 

 f) 2019 Budget Proviso for SeaTac International Airport 
Impact Study Update 

f) Discussion Only Pg. 67 

3. SCATBd    

4. MISCELLANEOUS     

 g) Agenda Approval Process g) Discussion Only  

5. ANNOUNCEMENTS    
   

 
 
Future Agendas: 

Crosswalks & Stop Signs 
Overlay & Repair Program 





1



2



3



4



5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



 

City of Tukwila Contract Number: 

6200 Southcenter Boulevard, Tukwila WA 98188 

 
CONSULTANT AGREEMENT FOR ENGINEERING DESIGN SERVICES FOR THE 2018 CBD Sewer 

CIPP Lining – SDC 
 

 THIS AGREEMENT is entered into between the City of Tukwila, Washington, hereinafter 
referred to as “the City”, and RH2 Engineering, Inc., hereinafter referred to as “the Consultant”, in 
consideration of the mutual benefits, terms, and conditions hereinafter specified. 

1. Project Designation.  The Consultant is retained by the city to perform the engineering 
services in connection with the project title 2018 CBD Sewer CIPP Lining – SDC. 

2. Scope of Services.  The Consultant agrees to perform the services, identified on Exhibit “A” 
attached hereto, including the provision of all labor, materials, equipment and supplies. 

3. Duration of Agreement; Time for Performance.  This Agreement shall be in full force and 
effect for a period commencing upon execution and ending December 31, 2018, unless 
sooner terminated under the provisions hereinafter specified.  Work under this Agreement 
shall commence upon written notice by the City to the Consultant to proceed.  The 
Consultant shall perform all services and provide all work product required pursuant to this 
Agreement no later than December 31, 2018 unless an extension of such time is granted in 
writing by the City. 

4. Payment.  The Consultant shall be paid by the City for completed work and for services 
rendered under this Agreement as follows: 

A. Payment for the work provided by the Consultant shall be made as provided on Exhibit 
“B” attached hereto, provided that the total amount of payment to the Consultant shall 
not exceed $79,949.00 without express written modification of the Agreement signed by 
the City. 

B. The Consultant may submit vouchers to the City once per month during the progress of 
the work for partial payment for that portion of the project completed to date.  Such 
vouchers will be checked by the City and, upon approval thereof, payment shall be 
made to the Consultant in the amount approved. 

C. Final payment of any balance due the Consultant of the total contract price earned will 
be made promptly upon its ascertainment and verification by the City after the 
completion of the work under this Agreement and its acceptance by the City. 

D. Payment as provided in this section shall be full compensation for work performed, 
services rendered, and for all materials, supplies, equipment and incidentals necessary 
to complete the work. 

E. The Consultant’s records and accounts pertaining to this Agreement are to be kept 
available for inspection by representatives of the City and the state of Washington for a 
period of three (3) years after final payments.  Copies shall be made available upon 
request. 

28



 

CA revised : 1-2013 Page 2 

5. Ownership and Use of Documents.  All documents, drawings, specifications and other 
materials produced by the Consultant in connection with the services rendered under this 
Agreement shall be the property of the City whether the project for which they are made is 
executed or not.  The Consultant shall be permitted to retain copies, including reproducible 
copies, of drawings and specifications for information, reference and use in connection with 
the Consultant’s endeavors.  The Consultant shall not be responsible for any use of the said 
documents, drawings, specifications or other materials by the City on any project other than 
the project specified in this Agreement. 

6. Compliance with Laws.  The Consultant shall, in performing the services contemplated by 
this Agreement, faithfully observe and comply with all federal, state, and local laws, 
ordinances and regulations, applicable to the services rendered under this Agreement. 

7. Indemnification.  The Consultant shall defend, indemnify and hold the City, its officers, 
officials, employees and volunteers harmless from any and all claims, injuries, damages, 
losses or suits including attorney fees, arising out of or resulting from the acts, errors or 
omissions of the Consultant in performance of this Agreement, except for injuries and 
damages caused by the sole negligence of the City. 

Should a court of competent jurisdiction determine that this Agreement is subject to RCW 
4.24.115, then, in the event of liability for damages arising out of bodily injury to persons or 
damages to property caused by or resulting from the concurrent negligence of the 
Consultant and the City, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers, the Consultant’s 
liability hereunder shall be only to the extent of the Consultant’s negligence.  It is further 
specifically and expressly understood that the indemnification provided herein constitutes the 
Consultant's waiver of immunity under Industrial Insurance, Title 51 RCW, solely for the 
purposes of this   indemnification.  This waiver has been mutually negotiated by the parties.  
The provisions of this section shall survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement. 

8. Insurance.  The Consultant shall procure and maintain for the duration of the Agreement, 
insurance against claims for injuries to persons or damage to property which may arise from 
or in connection with the performance of the work hereunder by the Consultant, its agents, 
representatives, or employees.  Consultant’s maintenance of insurance as required by the 
agreement shall not be construed to limit the liability of the Consultant to the coverage 
provided by such insurance, or otherwise limit the City’s recourse to any remedy available at 
law or in equity. 

A. Minimum Amounts and Scope of Insurance.  Consultant shall obtain insurance of the 
types and with the limits described below: 

1. Automobile Liability insurance with a minimum combined single limit for bodily 
injury and property damage of $1,000,000 per accident.  Automobile Liability 
insurance shall cover all owned, non-owned, hired and leased vehicles.  
Coverage shall be written on Insurance Services Office (ISO) form CA 00 01 or a 
substitute form providing equivalent liability coverage.  If necessary, the policy 
shall be endorsed to provide contractual liability coverage. 

2. Commercial General Liability insurance with limits no less than $1,000,000 each 
occurrence, $2,000,000 general aggregate.  Commercial General Liability 
insurance shall be written on ISO occurrence form CG 00 01 and shall cover 
liability arising from premises, operations, independent contractors and personal 
injury and advertising injury.  The City shall be named as an insured under the 
Consultant’s Commercial General Liability insurance policy with respect to the 
work performed for the City.   

3. Workers’ Compensation coverage as required by the Industrial Insurance laws of 
the State of Washington.  

29



 

CA revised : 1-2013 Page 3 

4. Professional Liability with limits no less than $1,000,000 per claim and 
$1,000,000 policy aggregate limit.  Professional Liability insurance shall be 
appropriate to the Consultant’s profession. 

B. Other Insurance Provision.  The Consultant’s Automobile Liability and Commercial 
General Liability insurance policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain that they 
shall be primary insurance with respect to the City.  Any Insurance, self-insurance, or 
insurance pool coverage maintained by the City shall be excess of the Consultant’s 
insurance and shall not be contributed or combined with it. 

C. Acceptability of Insurers.  Insurance is to be placed with insurers with a current A.M. 
Best rating of not less than A:VII. 

D. Verification of Coverage.  Consultant shall furnish the City with original certificates and 
a copy of the amendatory endorsements, including but not necessarily limited to the 
additional insured endorsement, evidencing the insurance requirements of the 
Consultant before commencement of the work.  Certificates of coverage and 
endorsements as required by this section shall be delivered to the City within fifteen (15) 
days of execution of this Agreement. 

E. Notice of Cancellation.  The Consultant shall provide the City with written notice of any 
policy cancellation, within two business days of their receipt of such notice. 

F. Failure to Maintain Insurance.  Failure on the part of the Consultant to maintain the 
insurance as required shall constitute a material breach of contract, upon which the City 
may, after giving five business days notice to the Consultant to correct the breach, 
immediately terminate the contract or, at its discretion, procure or renew such insurance 
and pay any and all premiums in connection therewith, with any sums so expended to be 
repaid to the City on demand, or at the sole discretion of the City, offset against funds 
due the Consultant from the City. 

9. Independent Contractor.  The Consultant and the City agree that the Consultant is an 
independent contractor with respect to the services provided pursuant to this Agreement.  
Nothing in this Agreement shall be considered to create the relationship of employer and 
employee between the parties hereto.  Neither the Consultant nor any employee of the 
Consultant shall be entitled to any benefits accorded City employees by virtue of the services 
provided under this Agreement.  The City shall not be responsible for withholding or 
otherwise deducting federal income tax or social security or for contributing to the state 
industrial insurance program, otherwise assuming the duties of an employer with respect to 
the Consultant, or any employee of the Consultant. 

10. Covenant Against Contingent Fees.  The Consultant warrants that he has not employed or 
retained any company or person, other than a bonafide employee working solely for the 
Consultant, to solicit or secure this contract, and that he has not paid or agreed to pay any 
company or person, other than a bonafide employee working solely for the Consultant, any 
fee, commission, percentage, brokerage fee, gifts, or any other consideration contingent 
upon or resulting from the award or making of this contract.  For breach or violation of this 
warrant, the City shall have the right to annul this contract without liability, or in its discretion 
to deduct from the contract price or consideration, or otherwise recover, the full amount of 
such fee, commission, percentage, brokerage fee, gift, or contingent fee. 

11. Discrimination Prohibited.  The Consultant, with regard to the work performed by it under 
this Agreement, will not discriminate on the grounds of race, religion, creed, color, national 
origin, age, veteran status, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, marital status, political 
affiliation or the presence of any disability in the selection and retention of employees or 
procurement of materials or supplies. 

30



 

CA revised : 1-2013 Page 4 

12. Assignment.  The Consultant shall not sublet or assign any of the services covered by this 
Agreement without the express written consent of the City. 

13. Non-Waiver.  Waiver by the City of any provision of this Agreement or any time limitation 
provided for in this Agreement shall not constitute a waiver of any other provision. 

14. Termination. 

A. The City reserves the right to terminate this Agreement at any time by giving ten (10) 
days written notice to the Consultant. 

B. In the event of the death of a member, partner or officer of the Consultant, or any of its 
supervisory personnel assigned to the project, the surviving members of the Consultant 
hereby agree to complete the work under the terms of this Agreement, if requested to 
do so by the City.  This section shall not be a bar to renegotiations of this Agreement 
between surviving members of the Consultant and the City, if the City so chooses. 

15. Applicable Law; Venue; Attorney’s Fees.  This Agreement shall be subject to, and the 
Consultant shall at all times comply with, all applicable federal, state and local laws, 
regulations, and rules, including the provisions of the City of Tukwila Municipal Code and 
ordinances of the City of Tukwila.  In the event any suit, arbitration, or other proceeding is 
instituted to enforce any term of this Agreement, the parties specifically understand and 
agree that venue shall be properly laid in King County, Washington.  The prevailing party in 
any such action shall be entitled to its attorney’s fees and costs of suit.  Venue for any action 
arising from or related to this Agreement shall be exclusively in King County Superior Court. 

16. Severability and Survival.  If any term, condition or provision of this Agreement is declared 
void or unenforceable or limited in its application or effect, such event shall not affect any 
other provisions hereof and all other provisions shall remain fully enforceable.  The 
provisions of this Agreement, which by their sense and context are reasonably intended to 
survive the completion, expiration or cancellation of this Agreement, shall survive termination 
of this Agreement. 

17. Notices.  Notices to the City of Tukwila shall be sent to the following address: 

  City Clerk 
  City of Tukwila 
  6200 Southcenter Boulevard 
  Tukwila, WA  98188 
 Notices to Consultant shall be sent to the following address: 
  RH2 Engineering, Inc. 
  22722 29th Drive SE, Suite 210 
  Bothell, Washington 98021 

18. Entire Agreement; Modification.  This Agreement, together with attachments or addenda, 
represents the entire and integrated Agreement between the City and the Consultant and 
supersedes all prior negotiations, representations, or agreements written or oral.  No 
amendment or modification of this Agreement shall be of any force or effect unless it is in 
writing and signed by the parties. 

31



 

CA revised : 1-2013 Page 5 

 
DATED this _________ day of ____________________________, 20_____. 

 
 
CITY OF TUKWILA CONSULTANT 
 
 
____________________________________ By: ___________________________________ 
Allan Ekberg, Mayor 
  Printed Name:   
 
  Title: __________________________________ 
 
Attest/Authenticated: Approved as to Form: 
 
 
_________________________ ______________________________________  

 
City Clerk, Christy O’Flaherty Office of the City Attorney 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

32



 

1 
3/27/2018 2:36 PM Z:\NewBusiness\Proposal\TUK\20180314_TUK_M18045_CBD Sewer Rehab SDC\RH2 Contract - 2018 CBD Sewer CIPP-ExA-MERMarkup.docx 

EXHIBIT A 
Scope of Work 

City of Tukwila 
2018 CBD Sewer CIPP Lining - Services During Construction 

March 2018 
 

Background  
The City of Tukwila (City) has awarded a contract to Michels Construction, using the design-bid-build process, 
to construct the 2018 Central Business District cured-in-place pipe lining project. Work is anticipated to start 
in this summer and to continue for two (2) to three (3) months.  RH2 Engineering, Inc. (RH2) was selected to 
perform the construction inspection and administration for this project under the direction of the City’s 
Project Manager (PM).  The following is a scope of work to provide onsite construction inspection and 
construction administration to the City for this project. 

Task 1 – Services During Construction (SDC) for Central Business District Sanitary 
Sewer Rehabilitation 

Objective:  Assist the City with technical efforts during construction of the Central Business District Sanitary 
Sewer Rehabilitation project, including on-site construction inspection.  

Approach: 

1.1 Pre-construction Meeting – Prepare for and lead one (1) pre-construction conference. Prepare an 
agenda and meeting minutes for the pre-construction conference. 

1.2 Submittal Review – Review shop drawings, submittals, and change order proposals of those items 
requested in the technical specifications. Provide a written response to the contractor and the City 
for each shop drawing and submittal reviewed. 

1.3 Requests for Information and Pay Requests – Review written requests for information (RFIs) and 
quantities for pay requests and provide written responses to the contractor and the City following 
City review.  Generate pay estimates for processing by City’s PM. 

1.4 Modify contract drawings to include work performed as recorded by the onsite construction inspector 
and from verified contractor notes. 

1.5 Construction Observation – Provide on-site construction inspection and associated administrative 
duties, including: observation of the contractor and its subcontractors, bid item quantity tracking, 
communications with City staff, and other tasks required in the field. 

1.6 Establish quantity tracking spreadsheet and/or other pay note records as required to keep tally of 
daily totals of contract bid items.  Establish data measurement and recording protocols in manner 
approved by City.   

Assumptions:  

 The City is performing the lead role in construction management and contract administration.  RH2 is 
performing all on site duties of inspection and project coordination under the supervision of the City. 

 For Task 1.5, construction is assumed to last approximately ten (10) hours each day for twenty-five 
(25) days during two separate phases of work.  The first phase is expected to be roughly one week and 

33



Client Name  Exhibit A 
Project Name   Scope of Work 
 
 

2 
3/27/2018 2:36 PM Z:\NewBusiness\Proposal\TUK\20180314_TUK_M18045_CBD Sewer Rehab SDC\RH2 Contract - 2018 CBD Sewer CIPP-ExA-MERMarkup.docx 

will investigate and verify the assumptions of the design.  The second phase will be to carry out all 
other scope of the construction contract. An RH2 Engineering, Inc., (RH2) team member will be present 
at all times during on site investigation and construction. 

 Construction phase services are variable in nature and depend in part on the contractor’s approach to 
the project. RH2’s estimate is based upon previous experience with Michels Construction and their 
construction approach and effort.   
 

Provided by the City:   

 Approve RFI responses to the contractor. 

 Help to process the contractor’s pay requests once quantities have been recorded and agreed to by 
RH2 and Michels. 

RH2 Deliverables:   

 Pre-construction conference administration and documentation, including pre-construction 
conference meeting agenda and minutes. 

 On-site construction inspection and associated reports. 

 Pay note records and Pay Estimate ledgers  

 Initial coordination and responses to construction and materials submittals, RFI’s and other project 
correspondence.  

 Design revisions as required to address changed conditions subject to the Management Reserve 
protocol discussed below. 

 Utility and/or permit field coordination in support of the project scope and objectives. 

 Meetings and correspondence with the City and contractor, as needed, within the budgeted hours 
identified in Exhibit B – Fee Estimate of Time and Expense. 

Task 2 – Project Management for Central Business District Sanitary Sewer 
Rehabilitation 
Objective:  Coordinate with City staff; monitor scope, budget, and schedule; review and issue construction 
management (CM)/construction engineering (CE) invoices; and maintain project files and records for the 
Central Business District Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation project. 

Approach: 

2.1 Coordinate with City staff on schedule, progress, and technical questions. 

2.2 Prepare for and attend two (2) construction progress meetings. Prepare an agenda and meeting 
minutes for the construction progress meetings. 

2.3 Prepare CM/CE invoices. Review for consistency and monitor budget spent. Provide monthly status 
updates. 

Provided by the City:   

 Attendance at construction meetings by members of the City’s staff. 

34



Client Name  Exhibit A 
Project Name   Scope of Work 
 
 

3 
3/27/2018 2:36 PM Z:\NewBusiness\Proposal\TUK\20180314_TUK_M18045_CBD Sewer Rehab SDC\RH2 Contract - 2018 CBD Sewer CIPP-ExA-MERMarkup.docx 

Task 3 – Management Reserve 
Objective:  RH2 has specified a contingency as part of the Fee Estimate to accommodate for changed 
conditions or unforeseen complications that may arise during the project. In this event, RH2 will notify the 
City of the time and expense warranted to address the new issue(s) that arise and will request to authorize 
use of the contingency funds. RH2 will not attempt to address these issues without the City’s prior 
authorization. RH2’s PM will contact the City via email to request access to these funds should the need arise. 

35



36



37



38



39



40



41



20
18

 S
m

al
l D

ra
in

ag
e 

- Q
ua

lif
ic

at
io

n 
R

ev
ie

w
 (1

= 
To

p 
C

ho
ic

e,
 2

 =
 S

ec
on

d 
C

ho
ic

e,
 3

 =
 T

hi
rd

 C
ho

ic
e)

KPG

DEA

Otak

R
el

ev
an

t P
ro

je
ct

 E
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

1
3

2

Ex
pe

rie
nc

e 
w

ith
 H

PA
/C

re
ek

 W
or

k
1

2
1

Sm
al

l S
ca

le
 P

ro
je

ct
s

1
2

1

A
bi

lit
y 

to
 k

ee
p 

pr
oj

ec
t o

n 
sc

he
du

le
 a

nd
 w

ith
in

 B
ud

ge
t 

1
2

1

Pr
oj

ec
t T

ea
m

 A
va

ila
bi

lit
y 

of
 K

ey
 T

ea
m

 M
em

be
rs

  
2

2
2

K
no

w
le

dg
e 

of
 C

ity
 , 

Pl
an

 P
ro

ce
ss

, D
ra

in
ag

e 
Sy

st
em

1
2

2

TO
TA

LS
(L

ow
es

t T
ot

al
 S

co
re

 is
 b

es
t)

7
13

9

Fi
rm

 R
an

k
(1

 - 
3,

 L
ow

es
t =

 B
es

t)
1

3
2

C
:\U

se
rs

\s
us

an
\A

pp
D

at
a\

Lo
ca

l\M
ic

ro
so

ft\
W

in
do

w
s\

IN
et

C
ac

he
\C

on
te

nt
.O

ut
lo

ok
\P

H
SH

O
0R

K\
Pr

op
os

al
 R

at
in

g 
20

18

42



43



 

City of Tukwila Contract Number: 

6200 Southcenter Boulevard, Tukwila WA 98188

 
CONSULTANT AGREEMENT FOR 

ENGINEERING SERVICES 
 
 THIS AGREEMENT is entered into between the City of Tukwila, Washington, hereinafter 
referred to as “the City”, and KPG, Inc., hereinafter referred to as “the Consultant”, in consideration 
of the mutual benefits, terms, and conditions hereinafter specified. 

1. Project Designation.  The Consultant is retained by the City to perform engineering services 
in connection with the project titled ‘2018 Small Drainage Program’. 

2. Scope of Services.  The Consultant agrees to perform the services, identified on Exhibit “A” 
attached hereto, including the provision of all labor, materials, equipment and supplies. 

3. Duration of Agreement; Time for Performance.  This Agreement shall be in full force and 
effect for a period commencing upon execution and ending December 31, 2018, unless sooner 
terminated under the provisions hereinafter specified.  Work under this Agreement shall 
commence upon written notice by the City to the Consultant to proceed.  The Consultant shall 
perform all services and provide all work product required pursuant to this Agreement no 
later than December 31, 2018 unless an extension of such time is granted in writing by the 
City. 

4. Payment.  The Consultant shall be paid by the City for completed work and for services 
rendered under this Agreement as follows: 

A. Payment for the work provided by the Consultant shall be made as provided on Exhibit 
“B” attached hereto, provided that the total amount of payment to the Consultant shall 
not exceed $79,570.00 without express written modification of the Agreement signed by 
the City. 

B. The Consultant may submit vouchers to the City once per month during the progress of 
the work for partial payment for that portion of the project completed to date.  Such 
vouchers will be checked by the City and, upon approval thereof, payment shall be made 
to the Consultant in the amount approved. 

C. Final payment of any balance due the Consultant of the total contract price earned will be 
made promptly upon its ascertainment and verification by the City after the completion 
of the work under this Agreement and its acceptance by the City. 

D. Payment as provided in this section shall be full compensation for work performed, 
services rendered, and for all materials, supplies, equipment and incidentals necessary to 
complete the work. 

E. The Consultant’s records and accounts pertaining to this Agreement are to be kept 
available for inspection by representatives of the City and the state of Washington for a 
period of three (3) years after final payments.  Copies shall be made available upon 
request. 

44



 

CA revised : 1-2013 Page 2 

5. Ownership and Use of Documents.  All documents, drawings, specifications and other 
materials produced by the Consultant in connection with the services rendered under this 
Agreement shall be the property of the City whether the project for which they are made is 
executed or not.  The Consultant shall be permitted to retain copies, including reproducible 
copies, of drawings and specifications for information, reference and use in connection with 
the Consultant’s endeavors.  The Consultant shall not be responsible for any use of the said 
documents, drawings, specifications or other materials by the City on any project other than 
the project specified in this Agreement. 

6. Compliance with Laws.  The Consultant shall, in performing the services contemplated by 
this Agreement, faithfully observe and comply with all federal, state, and local laws, 
ordinances and regulations, applicable to the services rendered under this Agreement. 

7. Indemnification.  The Consultant shall defend, indemnify and hold the City, its officers, 
officials, employees and volunteers harmless from any and all claims, injuries, damages, 
losses or suits including attorney fees, arising out of or resulting from the acts, errors or 
omissions of the Consultant in performance of this Agreement, except for injuries and 
damages caused by the sole negligence of the City. 

Should a court of competent jurisdiction determine that this Agreement is subject to RCW 
4.24.115, then, in the event of liability for damages arising out of bodily injury to persons or 
damages to property caused by or resulting from the concurrent negligence of the Consultant 
and the City, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers, the Consultant’s liability 
hereunder shall be only to the extent of the Consultant’s negligence.  It is further specifically 
and expressly understood that the indemnification provided herein constitutes the Consultant's 
waiver of immunity under Industrial Insurance, Title 51 RCW, solely for the purposes of this   
indemnification.  This waiver has been mutually negotiated by the parties.  The provisions of 
this section shall survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement. 

8. Insurance.  The Consultant shall procure and maintain for the duration of the Agreement, 
insurance against claims for injuries to persons or damage to property which may arise from 
or in connection with the performance of the work hereunder by the Consultant, its agents, 
representatives, or employees.  Consultant’s maintenance of insurance as required by the 
agreement shall not be construed to limit the liability of the Consultant to the coverage 
provided by such insurance, or otherwise limit the City’s recourse to any remedy available at 
law or in equity. 

A. Minimum Amounts and Scope of Insurance.  Consultant shall obtain insurance of the 
types and with the limits described below: 

1. Automobile Liability insurance with a minimum combined single limit for bodily 
injury and property damage of $1,000,000 per accident.  Automobile Liability 
insurance shall cover all owned, non-owned, hired and leased vehicles.  Coverage 
shall be written on Insurance Services Office (ISO) form CA 00 01 or a substitute 
form providing equivalent liability coverage.  If necessary, the policy shall be 
endorsed to provide contractual liability coverage. 

45



 

CA revised : 1-2013 Page 3 

2. Commercial General Liability insurance with limits no less than $1,000,000 each 
occurrence, $2,000,000 general aggregate.  Commercial General Liability 
insurance shall be written on ISO occurrence form CG 00 01 and shall cover 
liability arising from premises, operations, independent contractors and personal 
injury and advertising injury.  The City shall be named as an insured under the 
Consultant’s Commercial General Liability insurance policy with respect to the 
work performed for the City.   

3. Workers’ Compensation coverage as required by the Industrial Insurance laws of 
the State of Washington.  

4. Professional Liability with limits no less than $1,000,000 per claim and 
$1,000,000 policy aggregate limit.  Professional Liability insurance shall be 
appropriate to the Consultant’s profession. 

B. Other Insurance Provision.  The Consultant’s Automobile Liability and Commercial 
General Liability insurance policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain that they 
shall be primary insurance with respect to the City.  Any Insurance, self-insurance, or 
insurance pool coverage maintained by the City shall be excess of the Consultant’s 
insurance and shall not be contributed or combined with it. 

C. Acceptability of Insurers.  Insurance is to be placed with insurers with a current A.M. 
Best rating of not less than A:VII. 

D. Verification of Coverage.  Consultant shall furnish the City with original certificates and 
a copy of the amendatory endorsements, including but not necessarily limited to the 
additional insured endorsement, evidencing the insurance requirements of the Consultant 
before commencement of the work.  Certificates of coverage and endorsements as 
required by this section shall be delivered to the City within fifteen (15) days of execution 
of this Agreement. 

E. Notice of Cancellation.  The Consultant shall provide the City with written notice of any 
policy cancellation, within two business days of their receipt of such notice. 

F. Failure to Maintain Insurance.  Failure on the part of the Consultant to maintain the 
insurance as required shall constitute a material breach of contract, upon which the City 
may, after giving five business days notice to the Consultant to correct the breach, 
immediately terminate the contract or, at its discretion, procure or renew such insurance 
and pay any and all premiums in connection therewith, with any sums so expended to be 
repaid to the City on demand, or at the sole discretion of the City, offset against funds due 
the Consultant from the City. 

9. Independent Contractor.  The Consultant and the City agree that the Consultant is an 
independent contractor with respect to the services provided pursuant to this Agreement.  
Nothing in this Agreement shall be considered to create the relationship of employer and 
employee between the parties hereto.  Neither the Consultant nor any employee of the 
Consultant shall be entitled to any benefits accorded City employees by virtue of the services 
provided under this Agreement.  The City shall not be responsible for withholding or 
otherwise deducting federal income tax or social security or for contributing to the state 
industrial insurance program, otherwise assuming the duties of an employer with respect to 
the Consultant, or any employee of the Consultant. 

46



 

CA revised : 1-2013 Page 4 

10. Covenant Against Contingent Fees.  The Consultant warrants that he has not employed or 
retained any company or person, other than a bonafide employee working solely for the 
Consultant, to solicit or secure this contract, and that he has not paid or agreed to pay any 
company or person, other than a bonafide employee working solely for the Consultant, any 
fee, commission, percentage, brokerage fee, gifts, or any other consideration contingent upon 
or resulting from the award or making of this contract.  For breach or violation of this 
warrant, the City shall have the right to annul this contract without liability, or in its 
discretion to deduct from the contract price or consideration, or otherwise recover, the full 
amount of such fee, commission, percentage, brokerage fee, gift, or contingent fee. 

11. Discrimination Prohibited.  The Consultant, with regard to the work performed by it under 
this Agreement, will not discriminate on the grounds of race, religion, creed, color, national 
origin, age, veteran status, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, marital status, political 
affiliation or the presence of any disability in the selection and retention of employees or 
procurement of materials or supplies. 

12. Assignment.  The Consultant shall not sublet or assign any of the services covered by this 
Agreement without the express written consent of the City. 

13. Non-Waiver.  Waiver by the City of any provision of this Agreement or any time limitation 
provided for in this Agreement shall not constitute a waiver of any other provision. 

14. Termination. 

A. The City reserves the right to terminate this Agreement at any time by giving ten (10) 
days written notice to the Consultant. 

B. In the event of the death of a member, partner or officer of the Consultant, or any of its 
supervisory personnel assigned to the project, the surviving members of the Consultant 
hereby agree to complete the work under the terms of this Agreement, if requested to do 
so by the City.  This section shall not be a bar to renegotiations of this Agreement 
between surviving members of the Consultant and the City, if the City so chooses. 

15. Applicable Law; Venue; Attorney’s Fees.  This Agreement shall be subject to, and the 
Consultant shall at all times comply with, all applicable federal, state and local laws, 
regulations, and rules, including the provisions of the City of Tukwila Municipal Code and 
ordinances of the City of Tukwila.  In the event any suit, arbitration, or other proceeding is 
instituted to enforce any term of this Agreement, the parties specifically understand and agree 
that venue shall be properly laid in King County, Washington.  The prevailing party in any 
such action shall be entitled to its attorney’s fees and costs of suit.  Venue for any action 
arising from or related to this Agreement shall be exclusively in King County Superior Court. 

16. Severability and Survival.  If any term, condition or provision of this Agreement is declared 
void or unenforceable or limited in its application or effect, such event shall not affect any 
other provisions hereof and all other provisions shall remain fully enforceable.  The 
provisions of this Agreement, which by their sense and context are reasonably intended to 
survive the completion, expiration or cancellation of this Agreement, shall survive 
termination of this Agreement. 

47



 

CA revised : 1-2013 Page 5 

17. Notices.  Notices to the City of Tukwila shall be sent to the following address: 

  City Clerk 
  City of Tukwila 
  6200 Southcenter Boulevard 
  Tukwila, WA  98188 

 Notices to Consultant shall be sent to the following address: 

  KPG 

  753 9th Avenue North 

  Seattle, WA 98109 

18. Entire Agreement; Modification.  This Agreement, together with attachments or addenda, 
represents the entire and integrated Agreement between the City and the Consultant and 
supersedes all prior negotiations, representations, or agreements written or oral.  No 
amendment or modification of this Agreement shall be of any force or effect unless it is in 
writing and signed by the parties. 

 
DATED this _________ day of ____________________________, 2018. 

 
 
CITY OF TUKWILA CONSULTANT 
 
 
____________________________________ By:____________________________________ 
Mayor, Allan Ekberg 
 
  Printed Name:Nelson Davis, KPG 

 
  Title:_Principal 
 
 
Attest/Authenticated: Approved as to Form: 
 
 
____________________________________ _______________________________________ 
City Clerk, Christy O’Flaherty Office of the City Attorney 

48



City of Tukwila    KPG, Inc.  
2018 Small Drainage Program  Page 1 of 5  March 1018 

EXHIBIT A 

City of Tukwila 

2018 Small Drainage Program 

Scope of Work 

March 28, 2018 

 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION  

The Consultant shall prepare final Plans, Specifications and Estimates for the 2018 Small Drainage 
Program.  The project will include the following sites: 

 
Site 1: Gilliam Creek Outfall Access Improvements 
Install level access pad and fencing/railing to improve access and safety to flap gate apron.  This site 
may require an HPA and City of Tukwila Building Permit.   

 
Site 2: S 180th Street Bridge Retaining Wall 
Raise existing retaining wall and connect to bridge abutment.  This project is to address a freeboard 
deficiency that was identified in the recent Levee Certification analysis.  This site may require an 
HPA and City of Tukwila Building Permit. 
 
Site 3: Interurban Catch Basin Grates 
Existing concrete aprons around catch basins are cracking in a number of locations between Fort 
Dent Way and S 137th Street.  Project will repair catch basin aprons with possible modification to 
City Standard detail to improve durability. 
 
Site 4: Levee 205 Drainage Repair 
Failing CMP storm sewer and manhole south of Strander Blvd. has been identified by the Corps of 
Engineers for necessary repair.  Replace approximately 100’ of 12” storm sewer and move manhole 
behind levee.  As an in-kind maintenance replacement, no permits are anticipated. 
 
Site 5: Tukwila International Blvd. / Sabey pipe abandonment 
Add type 1 catch basin and connection to downstream system.  Fill and abandon existing 
undercrossing of Tukwila International Boulevard. 
 

The Consultant shall provide necessary surveying, project design, quantity and cost estimates, and utility 
coordination required to complete final bid documents.  It is anticipated that sites will be bid as a single 
bid package for the 2018 Small Drainage Program as budget or other considerations allow.   

The Consultant shall provide surveyed base maps with horizontal utility locations, or base maps created 
from field measurements, ortho-photography, and GIS data as necessary for each site.  If necessary, 
surveyed base maps will include right-of-way line work based on available public records.  Project 
horizontal and vertical datum will be assumed on all sites. 

49



City of Tukwila    KPG, Inc.  
2018 Small Drainage Program  Page 2 of 5  March 1018 

The Consultant shall provide assistance to the City with preparation of a SEPA checklist and HPA 
application where required.  A building permit will be acquired for the access and safety projects if required.  
No additional permits are anticipated. 

It is the Consultants understanding that none of the 2018 Small Drainage Program sites require biological 
assessments, additional permits beyond those listed, wetland delineations, geotechnical review, detention 
facilities, or water quality treatment facilities.  The budget assumes a straightforward approval process with 
no special studies or extensive coordination.  All work will be completed within City rights of way or 
easements and no easement acquisition is anticipated. 

In addition to the sites for the 2018 Small Drainage Program, the Consultant shall perform limited survey, 
geotechnical studies and preliminary design / feasibility analysis for the following sites: 

Site 6: Interurban Avenue S Rockery Drainage 
Rockery across from Golf Course driveway and parking lot lacks formal drainage above and behind 
rockery which causes water to flow onto the road and sidewalk creating significant icing problems.  
The Consultant shall prepare topographic survey and develop alternatives, cost estimate, and 
preliminary design to replace rockery with new wall system and tie in drainage from roadway and 
alley above.  Final design will be completed in a future small drainage program. 
 
Site 7: S 148th Street / 42nd Avenue S Creek Inlet Structure 
Creek inlet structure is prone to plugging, causing water to flow onto 42nd Ave S and create localized 
flooding.  Determine feasibility, cost, preliminary design, and easement needs for repair in a future 
small drainage program.  Previously completed survey will be utilized for preliminary design. 
 
Site 8: 10349 Beacon Avenue S  
Resident has reported roadway runoff entering property and causing damage to septic system.  
Perform geotechnical study to determine if there is sufficient infiltration capacity and/or limited 
survey to determine alternate pipe routing and prepare preliminary design and cost estimate for 
repair in a future small drainage program.  Aerial mapping will be used for preliminary design. 
 

 

  

50



City of Tukwila    KPG, Inc.  
2018 Small Drainage Program  Page 3 of 5  March 1018 

SCOPE OF WORK 

TASK 1 – 2018 Small Drainage Program Design  

1.1 MANAGEMENT/COORDINATION/ADMINISTRATION  

 The Consultant shall provide continuous project management and administration for the 
duration of the Project. (Estimate 3 months). 

 Hold project coordination meetings with the City to update progress and review submittals. 
Assume (3) meetings. 

 The Consultant shall provide monthly status reports and billings.  

 The Consultant shall provide independent QA/QC reviews by senior in-house staff of all 
deliverables prior to submittal to the City.  

1.2 Previously obtained mapping for sites 1 and 2 will be utilized for those sites.  Aerial base maps will 
be utilized for site 3.  The Consultant shall prepare a topographic base map for site 4 and 5.  

1.3 The Consultant has previously prepared designs for site 1; however, the full improvements proposed 
are cost prohibitive.  The Consultant shall work collaboratively with City staff to determine a minimal 
cost alternative to improve safety and access.  This may include fencing, railing, minor grading, and 
possibly some work to be completed by City maintenance staff outside of the drainage program. 

1.4 The Consultant has previously prepared designs for site 2.  This site shall be field reviewed to confirm 
no significant changes that would affect project design.  Minor updates and revisions are anticipated, 
and will be included in the 90% Plans and Bid Documents. 

1.5 The Consultant shall identify catch basin surrounds in need of replacement on aerial base maps and 
work collaboratively with City staff for a modified catch basin surround detail to minimize risk of 
future similar issues. 

1.6 The Consultant shall prepare 90% and and final design for sites 4 and 5. 

1.7 The Consultant shall develop plans to the 90% design level and prepare and submit building permit 
applications for Sites 1 & 2.  Specifications will be shown on the plan sheets and reference WSDOT 
specifications as applicable.  It is anticipated that detailed fabrication shop drawings will be provided 
by the contractor and may be required for final building permit approval. 

1.8 The Consultant shall coordinate with Washington Department of Fish and Wildlife to confirm 
previously obtained HPA for sites 1 & 2 provides sufficient authorization to proceed with the work.   

1.9 The Consultant shall prepare the Contract Specification per 2018 WSDOT Standard Specifications 
for the 90% Review Submittal and the Bid Documents 

1.10 The Consultant shall calculate quantities and prepare Engineers Estimate of Probable Construction 
Cost for each review submittal and the Bid Documents.  

1.11 The Consultant shall distribute 90% review submittals to franchise utility owners to identify potential 
conflicts within the Project limits.  

51



City of Tukwila    KPG, Inc.  
2018 Small Drainage Program  Page 4 of 5  March 1018 

1.12 The Consultant shall prepare final Bid Documents for the proposed improvements including the 
following: 

o Plans shall be prepared with such provisions in such detail as to permit field layout and 
construction within a degree of accuracy acceptable to the City and per industry 
standards.  

o Details will be prepared for items not available as standard details from the City, State, 
or WSDOT standard drawings.  

o The plans shall illustrate complete details of construction of the proposed 
improvements including limits of construction and removals, proposed invert 
elevations, rim elevations and required construction materials. 

o Drainage designs will be determined through consultation with City staff and from 
previous experience rather than detailed basin modeling. 

1.13 The Consultant shall provide bid period services to include responses to bidder inquiries, preparation 
of addenda, attendance at bid opening, preparation of bid tabulation, and recommendation to award 
or reject the apparent low bidder.  The budget assumes a straight forward review process with the 
low bidder receiving the contract award. 

 

 Assumptions  
o No federal funding is anticipated for the Project engineering or construction.  
o No utility upgrades are anticipated in the project design.  
o Drainage & Water Quality Reports will not be required. 
o Geotechnical Engineering services will not be required.  
o Environmental Documentation will not be required.  
o Potholing of existing underground utilities will not be required. 
o Any fees for City Building Permit will be paid by the City. 
o Previously obtained SEPA and Shoreline approvals for sites 1 and 2 will be sufficient 

for construction. 
o Sites 3,4 and 5 will not require SEPA approval or permits.  If permits are required, site 

may be deferred to future Small Drainage Program. 
 

 Deliverables 
o Building permit applications to City 
o 90% review submittal with Plans, Specifications, and Estimate (6 sets).  
o Bid Documents and Engineer’s Estimate (10 sets ½ size plans, specs, and estimate) 
o 6 sets of Plans (11” X 17”) and specifications provided for each review submittal.  
o 10 sets of Plans (11” X 17”) and specifications for the Bid Documents.  
o Coordinate upload of Plans and Specifications to Builders Exchange. 

  

52



City of Tukwila    KPG, Inc.  
2018 Small Drainage Program  Page 5 of 5  March 1018 

TASK 2 – Preliminary Design / Feasibility Analysis  

2.1 The Consultant shall prepare survey, analysis, and provide recommendation with preliminary 
horizontal layout and cost estimate for preferred design on Site 6.  Survey will extend the length of the 
wall from the curb flowline to 10’ behind wall and include all observed drainage facilities within the 
limits as well as contributing upstream drainage structures where locations are known.  Aerial mapping 
may be utilized if improvements are recommended outside of detailed survey limits. 
 

2.2 The Consultant shall field review previous design and easement documents prepared in 2002 for Site 7 
and update to include current layout and cost estimates.  The City will work with property owner to 
obtain easement rights.  Existing mapping will be supplemented with aerial mapping if necessary. 

 
2.3 The Consultant shall subcontract with a geotechnical consultant to perform one (1) Pilot Infiltration 

Test at the area of concern.  Based on findings of infiltration results, the Consultant shall evaluate 
feasibility of infiltration systems or piping extension and prepare preliminary layout and cost estimate 
on aerial mapping.   

Additional Services 

The City of Tukwila may require other services of the consultant. These services could include additional 
design, right of way, utility potholing, environmental documentation, construction phase services, or other 
work tasks not included in the scope of work.  At the time these services are required, the Consultant will 
provide the City with a detailed scope of work and an hour and fee estimate.  The Consultant will not 
proceed with the work until the City has authorized the work and issued a Notice to Proceed. 

 

53



E
XH

IB
IT

 B
H

O
U

R
 A

N
D

 F
EE

 E
ST

IM
AT

E

Pr
oj

ec
t:

C
ity

 o
f T

uk
w

ila

20
18

 S
m

al
l D

ra
in

ag
e 

Pr
og

ra
m

To
ta

l F
ee

P
ro

je
ct

 
S

en
io

r
S

en
io

r
P

ro
je

ct
D

es
ig

n
E

ng
r/S

ur
v

S
ur

ve
y

S
en

io
r

O
ffi

ce
Ta

sk
M

an
ag

er
E

ng
r

A
rc

h
E

ng
r/S

ur
v

E
ng

in
ee

r
Te

ch
ni

ci
an

C
re

w
A

dm
in

A
dm

in
20

2.
00

$ 
   

18
4.

00
$ 

   
14

8.
00

$ 
   

13
7.

00
$ 

   
12

8.
00

$ 
   

11
2.

00
$ 

   
16

5.
00

$ 
   

11
2.

00
$ 

   
92

.0
0

$ 
   

  
Fe

e

Ta
sk

 1
 - 

20
18

 S
m

al
l D

ra
in

ag
e 

Pr
og

ra
m

 D
es

ig
n

1.
1

M
an

ag
em

en
t/C

oo
rd

in
at

io
n/

A
dm

in
is

tra
tio

n
6

0
0

0
0

0
0

6
6

2,
43

6.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

1.
2

S
ur

ve
y 

an
d 

B
as

e 
M

ap
s

2
0

0
8

16
32

30
0

0
12

,0
82

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
1.

3
C

oo
rd

in
at

io
n 

an
d 

m
od

ifi
ca

tio
ns

 to
 S

ite
 1

2
2

4
8

8
0

0
0

0
3,

48
4.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
1.

4
Fi

el
d 

ch
ec

k 
an

d 
m

in
or

 m
od

ifi
ca

tio
ns

 to
 S

ite
 2

0
0

0
0

8
0

0
0

0
1,

02
4.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
1.

5
S

ite
 3

 d
es

ig
n 

an
d 

de
ta

ilin
g

2
0

0
0

16
8

0
0

0
3,

34
8.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
1.

6
90

%
 a

nd
 fi

na
l d

es
ig

n 
fo

r s
ite

s 
4 

an
d 

5
2

4
0

8
16

24
0

0
0

6,
97

2.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

1.
7

P
re

pa
re

 b
ui

ld
in

g 
pe

rm
it 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 fo
r s

ite
s 

1 
an

d 
2

0
0

8
4

0
0

0
4

0
2,

18
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
1.

8
W

D
FW

 c
oo

rd
in

at
io

n 
2

0
0

0
4

0
0

0
2

1,
10

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

1.
9

P
re

pa
re

 S
pe

ci
fic

at
io

ns
2

2
0

8
8

0
0

4
0

3,
34

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

1.
10

Q
ua

nt
ity

 a
nd

 C
os

t E
st

im
at

in
g

2
2

0
8

8
0

0
0

0
2,

89
2.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
1.

11
U

til
ity

 c
oo

rd
in

at
io

n
0

0
0

4
0

0
0

0
2

73
2.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

1.
12

Fi
na

liz
e 

B
id

 D
oc

um
en

ts
2

2
0

8
8

16
0

2
4

5,
27

6.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

1.
13

B
id

 P
er

io
d 

S
er

vi
ce

s
2

0
0

4
8

0
0

0
2

2,
16

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

R
ei

m
bu

rs
ab

le
 - 

M
ile

ag
e

20
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

R
ei

m
bu

rs
ab

le
 - 

R
ep

ro
du

ct
io

n
1,

20
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
R

ei
m

bu
rs

ab
le

 - 
S

tru
ct

ur
al

 A
llo

w
an

ce
5,

00
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
24

12
12

60
10

0
80

30
16

16
53

,4
26

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

  

Ta
sk

 2
 - 

Pr
el

im
in

ar
y 

D
es

ig
n 

/ F
ea

si
bi

lit
y 

An
al

ys
is

2.
1

S
ite

 5
 P

re
lim

in
ar

y 
D

es
ig

n 
an

d 
C

os
t E

st
im

at
es

4
4

0
8

24
16

24
0

0
11

,4
64

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
2.

2
S

ite
 6

 P
re

lim
in

ar
y 

D
es

ig
n 

an
d 

C
os

t E
st

im
at

es
2

0
0

4
8

8
0

0
0

2,
87

2.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

2.
3

S
ite

 7
 P

re
lim

in
ar

y 
D

es
ig

n 
an

d 
C

os
t E

st
im

at
es

2
4

0
4

8
8

0
0

0
3,

60
8.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
R

ei
m

bu
rs

ab
le

 - 
M

ile
ag

e
10

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
R

ei
m

bu
rs

ab
le

 - 
R

ep
ro

du
ct

io
n

10
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

R
ei

m
bu

rs
ab

le
 - 

G
eo

te
ch

ni
ca

l A
llo

w
an

ce
8,

00
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
8

8
0

16
40

32
24

0
0

26
,1

44
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

To
ta

l E
st

im
at

ed
 F

ee
:

79
,5

70
.0

0
$ 

   
   

 

La
bo

r H
ou

r E
st

im
at

e

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

Ta
sk

 1
 T

ot
al

Ta
sk

 1
 T

ot
al

3/
28

/2
01

8

54



55



����������	
����������������������������� �� ����������� ���������� !���"���#$���%�#��& '()*+,-�.)/ 012345467��������8�������������8�����������8�9������������8����8�8���� �%��:;% �#�$<����=$��>���?#@ ���A ���B ���� ���C ���D ���� ���� ���� ����87 �����EF'E.GEGH+IJKL M1 554 NOM44 NO444 5O001PQLR�STUVW 345 5M4 3O444 3OMM5V+-XQLR�YJ-JKQ-J)L M4 M44 MM4Z)LI-/�YK[-/ NO144 NO444 5O144Z)LI-(\,-J)L 3MO444 3NON44 N]ON44�������̂ �8��� �B� __� &̀��� &̀��� �C̀&�� �_̀��� � � � &D̀���ab.H�GcbTZEGdeQ(R+R�Gf'�g(QL- NOMM3 NOM0M MO352'()h)I+R�figET�g(QL- ]O044 MO105 36O]05'()h)I+R�G-Q-+�fij�g(QL- NOM44 NOM44 MO444'()h)I+R�aYGij�g(QL- NOM44 NOM44 MO444'()h)I+R�Gf'�g(QL- MO444 6O444 1O444ZJ-k�ch+(/�T+l+L\+ 32N 554 550 54M 544 642 4 4 4 NO32N������������� �B� __� &̀��� &̀��� �C̀&�� �_̀��� � � � &&̀DAB

'()*+,-�hQ(-L+(I�JL,X\R+�-m+�ZJ-k�)n�T+L-)LO�j)+JLKO�VGHcfO�aYGijO�G)\LR�f(QLIJ-O�Y+-()O�d[-(QoO�QLR�j.Ga�QLR�b'�TQJX()QRI/�a\LRI�JL�N43Mp32�Q(+�n)(�\hRQ-+R�,)I-�+I-J[Q-+I�QLR�K(QL-�QhhXJ,Q-J)LI/Gf'�S'GTZWO�adGf�PQL+O�QLR�figET�K(QL-I�e+(+�I\q[J--+R�JL�N432/.+e�I-(++-/'()*+,-�I+K(+KQ-+R�JL-)�-m(++�hmQI+I/�'mQI+�i�+r-+LR+R�G-QLR+(�jXlRUGV�N]-m�G-�n()[�cQoIRQX+�dl+�-).Q,m+I�dl+�GV/�'mQI+�ii�,)LI-(\,-+R�Q�N�XQL+�()QR�n()[�.Q,m+I�-)�-m+�G)\LR+(�f(QJLsI�f\oeJXQ�P)LKQ,(+I�G-Q-J)LsI�hQ(oJLK�X)-/�'QJR�T+L-)L�t3[�n)(�'mQI+�i�u�ii/�'mQI+�iii�eJXX�,)LI-(\,-�-m+�\LR+(,()IIJLK�)n�-m+�b'TT�QLR�,)[hX+-+�-m+�5�XQL+�()QReQk�n()[�V+I-�vQXX+k�wek�JL�f\oeJXQ�-)�.Q,m+I�dl+�GV�JL�T+L-)L/EQI-Ue+I-�,QhQ,J-k�q+-e++L�ip54M�QLR�G�314�G-�JI�L++R+R�-)�I+(l+�f\oeJXQ�QLR�T+L-)L�Q,,+II/H+IJKL�QLR�,)LI-(\,-�Q(-+(JQX�J[h()l+[+L-I�n)(�Q�L+e�()QReQk�+r-+LRJLK�G-(QLR+(�jXlRUGV�N]-m�G-n()[�V+I-�vQXX+k�wJKmeQk�-)�cQoIRQX+�dl+�JL�-m+�ZJ-k�)n�T+L-)L/

�xyz{�|�xyxx�}~���~�������������������~� �36 56



DRAFT

57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



71



73



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85


	CBD Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation Design
	Water Reservoir and Pump Station
	Minkler Water Main Replacement
	2018 CBD Sewer - CM
	2018 SDP
	Strander Extension
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page



